
Village of Carol Stream 
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING-PLAN COMMISSION /ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS  

 MONDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2016  AT 7:00 P.M. 
 

ALL MATTERS ON THE AGENDA MAY BE DISCUSSED, AMENDED AND ACTED UPON 
 

I. Roll Call:    Present:  

  Absent:   

 

II. Approval of Minutes:  October 10, 2016 

                                  
 

III. Public Hearing: 

 
 

A. 16-200 William Steele – T. Steele Construction, Inc. – 195 Kehoe Blvd 

Special Use Permit for Outdoor Activities and Operations 

 

B. 16-2072 Peter Kowalski – Kowalski Memorials – 195 Kehoe Blvd  

Special Use Amendment for Outdoor Activities and Operations 

 

C. 16-2073 Robert McNees – 27W245 North Avenue, LLC – 27W245 North Ave 

Rezoning (Upon annexation) 

Variations (Building setback, Outdoor storage, and Fence height) 

 

D. 16-2074 Kyle Johnson – American Flange and Manufacturing – 290 E 

Fullerton 

Special Use Permit for Outdoor Activities and Operations 

IV. Presentation: 

 

V. Old Business: 

 

VI. New Business:      

 

VII. Report of Officers: 

 

VIII. Adjournment: 

 

 



10-10-2016 PC 

                                                          DRAFT   1 

Regular Meeting – Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 
Gregory J. Bielawski Municipal Center, DuPage County, Carol Stream, Illinois 

 
All Matters on the Agenda may be Discussed, Amended and Acted Upon 

 
October 10, 2016 
 
Chairman Frank Parisi called the Regular Meeting of the Combined Plan Commission/Zoning Board of 
Appeals to order at 7:00 p.m. and directed Jane Lentino, Community Development Secretary, to call the 
roll.  
 
The results of the roll call were: 
 
Present:   Chairman Frank Parisi, Commissioners David Creighton, Frank Petella, Angelo 

Christopher, and Charlie Tucek. 
 
Absent:   Commisioners Dee Spink, and John Meneghini. 
   
Also Present:    Tom Farace, Planning and Economic Development Manager, Jane Lentino, 

Community Development Secretary, and a representative from DuPage County 
Court Reporters. 

 
MINUTES: 
 
Commissioner Creighton moved and Commissioner Tucek made the second to approve the minutes of 
the    meeting of August 8, 2016.  
 
The results of the roll call vote were: 
 
Ayes:  4 Commissioners Creighton, Christopher, Petella, and Tucek. 
 
Nays:  0  
 
Abstain: 1 Chairman Parisi.  
 
Absent: 2  Commissioners Dee Spink and John Menegheni.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
 

Commissioner Creighton moved and Commissioner Christopher made the second to open the Public 
Hearing.  
 
The motion passed by unanimous vote.   
 
Case # 16-2064, John Doyle – Chicago Sign and Light – 580 N Kuhn Road 

Sign Variation for the location of an electronic message board portion of a ground sign 

Chairman Parisi swore in the witness, Mr. Jeff Elrod, Council president for Lutheran Church of the 
Master, 580 N Kuhn Rd. Mr. James Kopke, from Chicago Sign and Light, was in attendance as well. 
 
Mr. Elrod gave a brief history of the church and its activities involving community support (i.e. food 
pantry and AA meetings), along with a summary of the church activities, including youth groups and 
senior activities, and is requesting the variance to advertise the church’s message. 
 



10-10-2016 PC 

                                                          DRAFT   2 

Mr. Kopke supported Mr. Elrod’s reasons for the request and explained the reason for the placement 
and LED resolution. 
 
Chairman Parisi asks for any questions from the audience. 
 
There were no questions from the audience. 
 
Chairman Parisi asks Mr. Farace for the staff report.  
 
Mr. Farace stated that the petitioner is requesting approval of a sign variation to re-orient the placement 
of the message board. Mr. Farace states per the sign code for signs with electronic message board, that 
the orientation of the electronic portion of the sign should be closer to the building than the roadway, 
which is counter intuitive for this intended purpose of this sign. Mr. Farace stated that staff is supportive 
of the variation, and that staff from both Community Development and Engineering Services met with 
the church and the sign company on-site to see the most adequate location, given the speed and 
visibility of the intersection, so it is safe for motorists and for individuals using the bike path. Mr. Farace 
suggested having a general discussion about eliminating this provision in the sign code in the future. 
 
Chairman Parisi asks Commissioners for any questions. 
 
Commissioner Petella asked the width of the bike path, the salt affecting the components of the sign, 
and if there was another sign on the property. 
 
Mr. Farace stated that the bike path is about 8 or 9 feet wide. 
 
Mr. Kopke stated that the setback for the sign is about 7 feet, and 8 feet from sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Kopke stated that the components are encapsulated and salt won’t have any effect on them.  
 
Mr. Elrod stated that there was an old sign and that it would be removed. 
 
Commissioner Tucek had no questions. 
 
Commissioner Christopher asked what the sign panels are made of, and about mulching the area for 
proper drainage of moisture that may accumulate in the sign. 
 
Mr. Kopke stated that they are made of aluminum and plastic louvers, encased in epoxy resin, and that 
there are drain holes and that it will drain into the mulch. 
 
Commissioner Creighton congratulated the church on their 50 years in existence, expressed concern 
about people climbing on the sign, and asked how much weight the changeable copy portion holds. 
 
Mr. Kopke stated that it takes a crane to lift it, people climbing on it won’t hurt it, and that isn’t the easiest 
thing to take apart.  
 
Commissioner Creighton agreed with amending the sign code, and also suggested changing the 
percentage of permanent copy of the sign in the code. 
 
Chairman Parisi asked about how the LED brightness of the sign will be modulated so as not to affect 
the residential area. 
 
Mr. Kopke stated that the LEDs are computer controlled and recognize sunrise and sunset, as well as 
daylight savings time. The software also gives the user the ability to change settings manually. Mr. 
Kopke also stated that it is suggested to run the sign only when there is traffic. 
 



10-10-2016 PC 

                                                          DRAFT   3 

Commissioner Petella asked about turning the sign off at specific times. 
 
Mr. Elrod stated that they would as they need to be financially conscious. 
 
Chairman Parisi began a discussion about, and is in favor of, proceeding with a comprehensive sign 
code revision. 
 
Chairman Parisi asked if there were any more questions from the committee or the community.  
 
There were no questions. 
 
Commissioner Petella moved and Commissioner Creighton made the second to approve the request for 
a variation to the sign code with staff recommendations. 
 
The results of the roll call vote were: 
 
Ayes:  5 Chairman Parisi, Commissioners Creighton, Christopher, Petella, and Tucek. 
 
Nays:  0  
 
Abstain: 0   
 
Absent: 2  Commissioners Spink and Meneghini.   
 
It was discussed that PC/ZBA has the authorization to approve this Sign Code variation request. Per the 
Sign Code, the Village Board is granted the opportunity to affirm or reverse the decision of the PC/ZBA 
within 21 days of the date that the request first appears before the Village Board, which will be October 
17, 2016.  
 
 
Case # 16-2065, Mark Layne – Insite, Inc. – 290 E. Fullerton Avenue  

Special Use to allow a structure to exceed 50 feet in height in the I Industrial District 

Chairman Parisi swore in the witness, Mr. Mark Layne, Insite Inc., 290 E. Fullerton, Carol Stream, IL 
60188. 
 
Mr. Layne stated that he was representing Parallel Towers/Parallel Infrastructure, Inc., a tower partner to 
Verizon Wireless. Mr. Layne explained that Verizon’s infrastructure development has changed, and that 
they have partnered with Parallel who develops towers and leases vertical real estate. Mr. Layne 
explained that the tower will be 120 feet, plus a 5 foot lightening rod. Verizon is the anchor tenant, and 
the tower is designed to accommodate 4 carriers. Mr. Layne stated that Verizon has identified a 
coverage need in the area. Mr. Layne presented several slides showing the need for coverage in a 
specific area near Gary and Fullerton; existing sites, current coverage, and how coverage will improve 
with cell tower in its chosen location; a map of the site; a visual showing the chosen site as it stands 
today and as it will look with the tower installed.  Mr. Layne explained the reason for the chosen location, 
siting reasons other possible locations were not suitable, and noting that the chosen site follows Village 
code for location of cell towers. 
 
Chairman Parisi asks for any questions from the audience. 
 
Mr. Jackson Tibbs, a student from Wheaton North High School, referred to the code and asked why 50 
feet is the cutoff, and what are the ramifications of the cell going lower or higher. 
 
Mr. Layne stated that a 50 foot maximum is Village code because it is the maximum height for a 
structure in an industrial area. Mr. Layne stated that the higher the tower the more coverage is attained. 
 



10-10-2016 PC 

                                                          DRAFT   4 

Chairman Parisi asked Mr. Farace for the staff report.  
 
Mr. Farace stated that the petitioner is requesting approval for a structure to exceed 50 feet in the 
industrial district. The cell tower will be 125 feet including the lightening rod. Mr. Farace stated that staff 
is supportive of the request for special use, as well as the co-location opportunity. Mr. Farace pointed 
out that this antenna is different than antennas in other locations in the Village, as it is not a stealth 
design which doesn’t offer the co-location opportunity. It is an array design that holds 4 carriers with 
limited visibility and negative effects in the community as a whole. It is within the industrial park, several 
hundred feet away from the adjacent roadway, over 1400 feet from Gary Avenue. Mr. Farace stated that 
staff is supportive of the request with few conditions. 
 
Chairman Parisi asks Commissioners for any questions. 
 
Commissioner Tucek asked about target area and if the placement of the antenna provides needed 
coverage, and wouldn’t Verizon want to get into the premium spot in the targeted coverage area. 
 
Mr. Layne stated that it is not ideal, but will improve the coverage, that there is no way to get to the 
center of the coverage area, and that the height of the antenna is calculated to provide the best 
coverage. 
 
Commissioner Christopher had no questions.  
 
Commissioner Creighton asked to point out where the bollards will be located around the fenced 
equipment area. 
 
Mr. Layne stated that he did not know where the bollards would be located as he had recently received 
the staff report and the drawings were done previously, and that all of the revisions would be added prior 
to permit submittal. 
 
Commissioner Creighton confirmed with Mr. Farace that there would be no cost to the Village if the 
tower were to be abandoned. 
 
Mr. Farace stated that staff discussed the possibility with Mr. Layne, and there is language in the lease 
agreement ensuring removal of the antenna, equipment, fencing, etc., at no cost to the Village, should 
the tower be abandoned. 
 
Commissioner Petella asked how high a tower must be before a light on top is required. 
 
Mr. Layne stated that the requirement for a light is determined by the FAA, based on proximity to the 
nearest airport, normally around 250 feet. 
 
Commissioner Petella asked about the proposed barbed wire fencing, suggesting that it be eliminated. 
 
Mr. Layne stated that it could, but Commissioner Petella stated that he felt that is was acceptable at this 
location since it is not near a residential area. 
 
Chairman Parisi asked about the original proposed location of Armstrong Park. 
 
Mr. Layne stated that there was not a suitable location in Armstrong Park given the existing flood plain. 
 
Chairman Parisi asked Mr. Farace about the recommendation in the staff report regarding considering 
not providing landscape screening for equipment because it would take additional parking out of use. 
Chairman Parisi recommended modifying the staff recommendation to put slats in the fencing, which 
meets the intent of the code. 
 



10-10-2016 PC 

                                                          DRAFT   5 

Commissioner Creighton moved and Commissioner Tucek made the second move to approve the 
special use to allow a structure to exceed 50 feet in height in the I Industrial Park with staff 
recommendations with condition of using the slats in the fence around the equipment enclosure. 
 
 
 
The results of the roll call vote were: 
 
Ayes:  5 Chairman Parisi and Commissioners Creighton, Christopher, Petella, and Tucek. 
 
Nays:  0  
 
Abstain: 0   
 
Absent: 2  Commissioners Spink and Meneghini.   
 
Chairman Parisi reminded the applicant that the request for the Special Use Permit will go before the 
Village Board on Monday, October 17, 2016, at 7:30 PM for final action.   
 
Commissioner Petella moved and Commissioner Creighton made the second to close the Public 
Hearing.   

 
The motion passed by unanimous vote.   
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Mr. Farace recommended discussion of cancellation of the meeting on October 24th, 2016. Mr. Farace 
informed the Board that an email will be sent out inviting them to a ground breaking ceremony on 
November 2, 2016, at lunch time for the Dermody project on North Avenue. Mr. Farace informed the 
Board that during the construction of the Village Hall, meetings are to be held at the Fire Protection 
District on Kuhn Road. Their availability for the Village Board is on the first and third Monday nights, 
and for PC/ZBA on the fourth Monday night, but there is no availability on the second Monday night. 
Mr. Farace suggested scheduling one meeting a month during renovation, but wanted to see if the 
Board would be available on the second Tuesday of the month if the need arose for a second meeting.  
 
The motion was passed by unanimous vote. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
At 7:50 p.m. Commissioner Creighton moved and Commissioner Petella made the second to adjourn 
the meeting.   
 
The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
      FOR THE COMBINED BOARD 
 
Recorded and transcribed by, 
 
____________________________ 
Jane Lentino 
Community Development Secretary 
 
Minutes approved by Plan Commission on this ____day of __________________, 20____. 
 

                                                  _________________________________ 
                                                Chairman 
















































































































































	Agenda
	Minutes of 10-10-16
	Case #16-200
	Case #16-2072
	Case #16-2073
	Case #16-2074

